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Clarion Free Library

Excellent example of Carnegiesgue influence in
civic architecture of the periocd. Small stone
building with flat roof and pedimented portico.
The roof edge is balustraded and the pediment
features an open book motif framed by leafy vines.
The pediment is supported py pDoric columns and the
doorway has a bracketed cornice with dentils and a
transom. Stone laid in even courses, projecting
in foundation. Rear addition: Ross Auditorium.
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HISTORICAL INFORMATION

A. Physical History:

l.

2.

Date of erection: 1929-1930

Architect: Emmett E. Bailey (Clarion Democrat, July 4,
1929, xerox copy in Clarion Free Library Collection)
Bailey was born in Tully Valley, New York, in 1872.
During his career as an architect, Mr. Bailey became
well known throughout this section and designed many
familiar buildings, including the 0Oil City Hospital, 0il
City, Pennsylvania, the second Presbyterian church, 0il
City, Pennsylvania, the First Baptist church, 0il City,
Pennsylvania and the courthouse at Brookville, Pennsyl-
vania. Mr. Bailey died in 1942 (Derrick, May 6, 1942,
Xerox copy in Clarion Free Library Collection, Clarion,
Pennsylvania)

Original and subsequent owners: .Clarion Borough

1929 Deed June 28, 1929, recorded in Clarion County
L & A Book, Volume 47, page 4. Clarion County Court
House, Clarion, Pennsylvania.

Builder, contractor, suppliers:

a. Contractor: L. O. Bouquin & Co., 0il City, Pennsyl-
vania (Clarion Democrat, December 12, 1929, xerox
copy in Clarion Free Library Collection, Clarion,
Pennsylvania)

b. Builders, suppliers: Not known.

Original plans and construction: Original drawings
included in photographic documentation. Originals are
housed in Clarion Free Library Collection, Clarion,
Pennsylvania. Structure has never been altered. Only
revision noted on original drawings indicates emergency
lighting system installed May 5, 1978. Cost of building
was $70,000 (Clarion Democrat, September 19, 1929,
Xerox copy in Clarion Free Library Collection. Clarion,
Pennsylvania).

Alterations and additions: Front library roof was
replaced in 1985. As noted above, only addition was
emergency lighting system May 5, 1978.
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Historical Context:

In 1910, a group of "public spirited" citizens organized to
form a free library. Not until 1914 did the Woman's Club
become interested and decided to sponsor the library as a
project and on March 19, 1914, the Clarion Free Library
Association was formed. The first library was housed in a
vacant gymnasium owned by Judge Harry R. Wilson located on
the northwest corner of Wood Street and Fourth Avenue. It
opened in June of 1914. Miss Emma Henry served as librarian.
In 1918, the library moved into the Judge Campbell residence
on Main Street owned by the Clarion Community Association
(the present location). The property was sold to the Ross
estate in 1929.

Jonhn D. Ross, while visiting Clarion, became aware of the
community's need for a library. Upon his return to his
business in Denver, Colorado, he decided to leave the bulk

of his estate to build one, provided the borough would take
over the maintenance of the building and the lot after the
building was completed. He appointed his brother, Dr. Charles
C. Ross, trustee of his estate and requested that the building
be a memorial to his mother, Mary A. Ross.

John Ross died in 1920, but because his brother did not

comply with the terms of the will, construction did not begin
until 1929. The citizens of Clarion fought two legal battles
on behalf of the library. The cornerstone was laid in December,
1929. The approximate cost of the project was $70,000. The
library had several temporary residences before moving finally
into the first floor of the new building in 1931 and Miss
Caroline Hill was the first "regular librarian".

In 1934, the library closed because of lack of funds and did
not reopen until June, 1936. From then, until 1941, volunteers
supervised the daily operation of the library. In 1938 the
library moved to the basement rooms to allow the upper floor
to be rented. This temporary move turned into a lengthy
stay. Funding continued to be a problem and finally the
Civic Club persuaded Borough Council to levy a two mill tax
for the library. The funding problem improved also with the
iniation of County and State funds that matched locally
raised money. The library moved upstairs in June, 1962, and
by 1966, it was necessary to move the Children's Department
into one of the downstairs rooms.

{(continued)
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Historical Context: (continued)

Changes in the physical layout have been nonexistent since

the 1960's but for one exception. In 1970, the library was
designated the District Center for the Clarion District

Library Association by the Pennsylvania Department of Education.
Since 1976, after renovating a downstairs room, the library

has housed the office of the Consultant Librarian and serves

as the primary reference and information source for fourteen
public libraries in Clarion, Jefferson and Venango Counties

and the City of DuBois, Pennsylvania.

In 1977, the Clarion County Commissioners designated the
Clarion Free Library as the County Library for the Clarion
County Library System and present Head Librarian, Jacqueline
Baker, as the County Librarian. Today the library is a vital
part of the community as growth has been steady and sure,
bringing much promise for the future. (Information taken
from an unpublished account of the "History of the Public
Library of Clarion, Pennsylvania", n.d., in the Clarion Free
Library Collection)
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PART 11. ARCHITECTURAL INFORMATION

A, General Statement:

1. Architectural charactern: The Library was built in 1929 in the
monumental style of many Carnegle Librarnies built durning
that era. 1t is symmetrnical in plan and its classical
facade faces boldly onto the main street of Clarion.

2. Condition of fabric: The Library building is faced in sandstone
in good condition excepl fon the main entrance steps which
ane deteriornated and hazarndous. The Auditorium wing L8
brick and in poorn condition. The plaster interions of both
Librany and Auditornium have been damaged by waten grom noof
Leaks. The Librarny noof was replaced Ain 1985 but the Auditorium
noof nemains An bad.condition.

B. Descrniption of Exterion:

. 1. Overall dimensions: The Library Building is two stories and
: 38'-8"x65"-8" .in plan. The Auditorium Wing is a s.ingle
intenmediate Level at grade and measunes 47'-4"x71'-11".

There 48 no basement. .

2. Foundations: Poured concrete of sizes as indicated on drawings.

3. Walls: Librany walls are 13" of sandstone and tile; Auditorium
walls are 13" of buff brick and tile. The exterion walls in
both areas have a plastern internion §inish. ‘ '

4. Stwetwwal system framing: The exterion walls and some interion
‘ walls are Load-bearning tile. The uppen Level §Loor 48 a
concrete slab suppornted by steel joists, and the noof L8
- gypsum slabs supported by steel beams orn trusses. :

5. Pontico: The entrance pontico facing main street has a sandstone
§Loon and stone steps Leading to it. The walls also are of
stone and the main facade is topped by a stone pediment with

canved a/mamenf.a@on.‘

6. -Chinmeys: Thene 44 ané.buﬂﬂ brick masonry chimney Located at
: the intersection of the Librany and Auditorium near the
East ELevation. '

‘7. Openings: ' Lo o
a. Doorways and doons: Soldd wood. exterior doors and casings
are used. Doors are typically pairns with a glass trhansom over.
Many doons have the orniginal bronze hardware which employs a
simple colonial knob and plate. '



8.

ROSS MEMORIAL LIBRARY BUTILDING
(Clarion Free Library)
HABS No. PA-5353 (Page 6)

b. Windows: Wood double hung windows are employed throughout.
Upper Level Library and Auditornium are two overn three Light
sash; Lowen Level Library are one oven one Light sash. The
Porntico windows have bronze grnilles. :

Roo§: : ‘

a. Shape, covering: A sfoped asphalt shingled nood alligned to
the sLopes of the pediment covers the center thind of the
Librarny while the §lat noofed side areas are covered by a
nubber membrane. The Auditorium has a §Lat built up roof.

b. Comnice, eaves: Cut sione tnims the edges of all roofs and

tops the parapets surrounding the glat roof areas. The
Librany §Lat noogs have stone parapets on two sides with
open ballusters in the centern thirnd of each. A baick para-
pet swurounds the Auditorium roof.

c. Donmens, cupolas, towerns: none.

c. Descniption of Intenion:

1.

Floon plans: (see photographic copies of drawings)

a. Librany - Lowern Level: Todllets nooms, Childrens Library
(oniginally Commifitee Room), Disinict Services (orniginally
‘Kitchen), and Boilern Room flank a center Hall which connects
Zo the outside and the Upper Level (by a stair) at one end and
to the Auditorium at the othenx.

b. Auditonium - Intenmediate Level: One Large space with access

at one end from the Lower Level of the Library and §rom the
outside, the-other end tenminates with a raised platfonm (stage).
A space 4in the Library Lowen Level orniginally a Workroom was
altered {gLoon naised) forn a Kitchen to serve the Auditorium.

c. Librany - Uppern Level: This is the main Library FLoor and
consists of a central area containing the vestibule entrance,
three offices, a toilet room, a stain to the Lowen Level, and the
Librany Cinculation desk and display area. Two Large rooms
containing bookstacks and seating flank the central space.

Staiways: A steel stainway with ceramic tile treads, steel
ballusters, and wood handrails connects the Upper and Lowen
Levels of the Librany at the front of the building.

Flooning: Linofeum and resilient tile are used for most of the

§loon areas. Ceramic tile (earnthtone colorns) is used on the
§loon 0§ the Lowen Level Hall and in the Toilet Rooms.

Wall and ceiling §inish: Smooth plaster finish is used throughout
except that Toilet Rooms employ a ceramic tile waindcol.

. Openings:

a. Doorways and doorns: Flush wood doons with wood casings are
existing throughout. Harndware is bronze. Three Lange :
openings (4'-8"w x 10'-0"h, which may have originally contained
glass doons) connect the central space of the upper Level Zo
the Lange side rooms.
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Windows: Lange double hung windows provide natural Light.
Tnims are painted,white and match tnim of doon casings.

6. Decorative features and thim: Plaster cornice moldings are

employed at the wall/ceiling intersections of the main
spaces. The Auditorium has plaster pilasters with ornamented
capitals spaced evenly on each of the fourn walls. The
capitals appearn Lo support a plaster frieze and cornice
(2'-3"h} around the perimeter of the noom.

7. Handware: The hardware 48 bronze and ondinary.

§. Mechanical equipment:

a.

Site:

Heating, air conditioning, ventilation: The building 4is
heated by steam from a gas {§ired boiller Located in Boilern
Room (see drawings). Oniginally the bo.iler probably was
coal fined. Heat is transmitted through nadiatorns Located
unden each window. The radiatorns in the Auditorium are
built into the walls. No exhaust on airn conditioning systems
exist.

Lighting: Most of the oniginal Lights have been replaced
The orniginal Lights were probably incandescent pendants.
Thein neplacements are fluorescent pendants. A pendant and
fwo wall Lamps at the Entrance Portico sXilL exist. An
emengency Lighting sysiem was added recently.

PLumbing: Two oniginal Toilet Rooms each with two water
closets and two Lavs are Located on the Lowern Level. The
orniginal noof drains with nain water conductors built into
walls and §Loorn drains are Located at various points around
the building. -

- I'.  General Setting and onientation:

The Library Building faces nonth towarnd Main Street, while
the Auditorium wing profects to the south toward Merte Road.
The asite is §Lat having only a drop of three feet (in 180')
from front to back. 1t is also open with no attached
adjacent bwildings which might be expected .in the small

town setting. A Post Office building (one stony) 48 Located
30 feet to the west and a Lange brick house (2 stories) 4is
30 4feet 2o the east.

2. Histonic Landscape design:

The sidewalk design is symmetrnical with a single center
entrance walhk which branches out at the entrance steps into
two sidewalhs which extends symmetrnically around each side of
the building o Zhe back.

The Landscape theatments consisting mostly of shubs planted
close to the building, appears 4qmewha,t haphazard.

3. Outbuildings: None.
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PART III. SOURCES OF INFORMATION

A.

Architectural drawings:
1. Date: 1929

2. Location: Copies are included in photographic documentation.
Originals are housed in Clarion Free Library Collection,
Clarion, Pennsylvania.

Historic Views: No photographs found. Only information
found was picture in Clarion Democrat, July 4, 1929. See
Supplemental Material Page 10 in this document. Library
records were checked as well as local Historical Society. Ad
was also placed jip the local newspapers for information.

Interviews: DNo records found. Library records were checked
as well as local Historical Society. Ad was also placed in
the local newspapers for information.

Bibliography:

1. True, Mary A. and Ross, Alice B. "History of the Public
Library of Clarion, Pennsylvania”. n.d. Clarion Free
Library Collection, Clarion, Pennsylvania.

Baker, Jaqueline. "“Clarion Free Library History". Rev.,
1983. Clarion Free Library Collection, Clarion, Pennsyl-
vania.

2. "Ross Memorial Building". Clarion Democrat, July 4, 1929.
Microfilm copy in Clarion Free Library Collection, Clarion
Pennsylvania.

"E.E. Bailey Dies Suddenly". Derrick, May 6,1942.
Xerox copy in Clarion Free Library Collection, Clarion,
Pennsylvania. Original housed in 0il City Library Collec-

tion, 0il City, Pennsylvania.

"Ross Memorial Library". Clarion Democrat, September 19,
1929. Microfilm copy in Clarion Free Library Collection,
Clarion, Pennsylvania.

"Ross Memorial Building Leased To Library and Community
Associations". Clarion Democrat, October 1, 1931. Micro-
film copy in Clarion Free Library Collection, Clarion,
Pennsylvania.
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E. Likely sources not yet investigated: None.

F. Supplemental material: See Pages 9 and 10. Xerox and micro-
film copies housed in Clarion Free Library Collection, Clarion,

Pennsylvania.

PART IV. PROJECT INFORMATION

The Clarion Free Library renovation and expansion project will be
made possible because of a $400,000 matching LSCA Title II Grant.
The major chance and addition will take place at the rear of the
building. Only the auditorium portion of the building will be
demolished. A two level addition will replace this portion.

The addition will respect the architectural integrity of the

existing classic structure which will remain exactly the same as
pictured and will continue to be called the Ross Memorial Building.

Prepared by: John Evans

. Title: Reg. Architect
_ Affiliation: E/S Architects
Date: July, 1986

Prepared by: Joanne Vavrek

Title: Clarion Free Library Board
Affiliation: President

Date: July, 1986
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